IN THE UNI TED STATES DI STRI CT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DI STRI CT OF PENNSYLVAN A

CHRI STOPHER T. BORN, M D. . CGVIL ACTION
V. :

W LLI AM | ANNACONE, M D.,

ROBERT DALSEY, MD.,

LAWRENCE DEUTSCH, M D.

JOHN CATALANO, M D., and

THE COOPER HEALTH SYSTEM

d/ b/ a COOPER HOSPI TAL/ :

UNI VERSI TY MEDI CAL CENTER : NO 97-5607

MEMORANDUM AND ORDER

HUTTON, J. June 2, 1999

Presently before this Court is the Mtion of Defendant
The Cooper Health System (“Cooper” or “Defendant”) to D smss
Plaintiff’s Qui Tam daim (Docket No. 26), the Response of
Plaintiff, Christoper T. Born, MD. (“Born” or “Plaintiff”),
Cooper’s letter-brief (Docket No. 39), and Plaintiff’'s Sur-Reply
(Docket No. 40). For the reasons stated bel ow, the Defendant’s

Mbtion i s DEN ED.

. BACKGROUND

On February 9, 1998, Plaintiff Christoper T. Born, MD.
(“Born” or “Plaintiff”) filed his First Amended Conpl ai nt agai nst
vari ous Defendants including a violation of the False O ains Act,
31 U.S.C. 8 3730(h) (Count 1V) against The Cooper Health System

(“Cooper” or *“Defendant”). On Septenber 30, 1998, this Court



dismssed the Plaintiff’s False Clainms Act and Qui TamdC ai mof his
Amended Conpl ai nt because of the Plaintiff’'s failure to submt a
tinely response to the Defendants’ Modtions to Dismss. On Decenber
7, 1998, this Court granted Plaintiff’s notion for reconsi deration
and vacated its earlier order dismssing Plaintiff’s Fal se clains
Act and Qui Tamd aim(Count 1V) of Plaintiff’s Arended Conpl ai nt.
The Court now considers Plaintiff’s False clains Act and Qui Tam

Claim (Count 1V) of his Anended Conpl aint.

1. DI SCUSSI ON

A. Legal Standard

When considering a notion to dismss a conplaint for
failure to state a claim under Federal Rule of Civil Procedure
12(b)(6),\! this Court nust "accept as true the facts alleged in
the conplaint and all reasonabl e inferences that can be drawn from
t hem Di smssal under Rule 12(b)(6) . . . is limted to those
i nstances where it is certain that no relief could be granted under

any set of facts that could be proved." Markowitz v. Northeast

Land Co., 906 F.2d 100, 103 (3d Cr. 1990) (citing Ransom v.
Marrazzo, 848 F.2d 398, 401 (3d Cir. 1988)); see HJ. Inc. v.

s Rul e 12(b)(6) provides that:

Every defense, in law or fact, to a claimfor relief in
any pleading . . . shall be asserted in the responsive
pl eading thereto if one is required, except that the
foll owi ng defenses may at the option of the pleader be
made by nmotion: . . . (6) failure to state a clai mupon
which relief can be granted . .

Fed. R Gv. P. 12(b)(6).



Nort hwestern Bell Tel. Co., 492 U. S. 229, 249-50 (1989). The court

will only dismss the complaint if "'"it is clear that no relief
could be granted under any set of facts that could be proved
consistent with the allegations.'™ HJ. Inc., 492 U S. at 249-50

(quoting H shon v. King & Spalding, 467 U S. 69, 73 (1984)).

B. Defendant’s Mbtion

In the present notion, Cooper asserts that the qui tam
cl ai m under Count 1V should be dism ssed. Cooper raises three
general issues. First, Cooper contends that Born has failed to
state a qui tam cause of action under 8 3730(h). Cooper argues
that Born has not alleged the requisite elenents for this
“whi stleblower” claim Second, Cooper clains that Born has failed
to plead fraud with the requisite particularity. Third, and
finally, Cooper alleges that Born has failed to plead that the
Eastern District is the proper venue for his qui tam action.
Because the Court has already found that venue is proper in the

Eastern District of Pennsylvania, the Court need not consider

Cooper’s third argument. See Born v. lannocone, Cv.A No. 97-

5607, 1998 W. 297621, *6-7 (E.D. Pa. Jun. 3, 1998) (denying Cooper’s
notion to transfer venue to District of New Jersey). The Court now
considers the first two issues raised by Cooper in the instant

nmoti on.



1. Qui Tam Action under 8§ 3730(h)

Title 31, U S.C. § 3729 creates liability for any person
who presents false clains to the federal governnent for paynent.
Section 3730 allows a private person to bring a civil action on
behal f of the Governnent for violations of 8 3729 (i.e., a "qui tam
action"). Section 3730(h)-- sonetines called the "whistlebl ower™
provision of the False Cains Act-- "prevents the harassnent,
retaliation, or threatening of enpl oyees who assist in or bring qu

tam actions.” Zahodnick v. IBM Corp., 135 F.3d 911, 914 (4th

Cir.1997). It provides:
Any enpl oyee who is discharged, denoted, suspended,
t hr eat ened, har assed, or in any other manner
discrimnated against in the terns and conditions of
enpl oynent by his or her enpl oyer because of |awful acts
done by the enpl oyee on behal f of the enpl oyee or others
in furtherance of an action under this section, including
investigation for, initiation of, testinony for, or
assistance in an action filed or to be filed under this
section, shall be entitled to all relief necessary to
make the enpl oyee whol e.
31 U S.C. 8§ 3730(h). Three elenments exist under 8§ 3730(h) that
constitute a prima facie case: "[A]n enployee nmust prove that (1)
he took acts in furtherance of a qui tam suit [i.e. engaged in
"protected activity']; (2) his enployer knew of these acts; and
(3) his enployer [retaliated against] him as a result of these
acts." Zahodnick, 135 F. 3d at 914.
Count IV of Born’s Anended Conpl ai nt has established all
three elenents of a prima facie case under 8§ 3730(h). First, he

was engaged in an activity protected by the False C ains Act when

- 4 -



he consulted with counsel regarding Cooper’s allegedly illegal
policies and when he refused to allow UOS physicians to sign the

charts of patients they had not seen. See e.qg., United States ex

rel. Yesudian v. Howard Univ., 153 F. 3d 731, 737 (D.C. Gr. 1998).

Second, the Anended Conpl ai nt satisfies the requirenent that Cooper
must have known that Born was engaging in such conduct, since it
specifically alleges that Cooper knew about Born's protected
activities. Whet her Cooper had know edge of Born's protected
activity is an issue of fact that cannot be resolved on a notionto

dismss. See, e.qg., WIlkins v. State of Chio, 885 F. Supp. 1055,

1061 (S.D. Oh. 1995). Third, Born has sufficiently plead that
Cooper retaliated agai nst him because of his protected activity.
Al t hough Born admts that he was never discharged, he clains that
Cooper gave himthe “choice” of either accepting unfair enpl oynent
terme with Cooper, or having his practice and reputation
“maliciously interfered with.” Thus, the Court finds that Count |V
of Plaintiff’s Anmended Conplaint sufficiently pleads a qui tam

cl ai munder 8§ 3730(h).

2. Fraud Pl eadi ng

Cooper argues that Count IV of Born's Conplaint nust be
dismssed for failure to plead his allegations of fraud wth
particularity as required by Federal Rule of G vil Procedure 9(b).

Fed. R Cv. P. 9(b). This Court mnust disagree.



The purpose of Rule 9(b) is "to place the defendant on
notice of the precise m sconduct with which they are charged, and
to safeguard defendants against spurious charges of imoral and

f raudul ent behavi or." Sevill e I ndus. Machi nery Corp. Vv. Sout hnost

Machinery Corp., 742 F.2d 786 (3d Cr. 1984), cert. denied, 469

U S 1211, 105 S.C. 1179, 84 L.Ed.2d 327 (1985). 1In Seville, the
Court of Appeals held that, as long as there is precision and sone
measure of substantiation in the allegations, the conplaint nust

stand. See Seville, 742 F.2d at 791; see also Berk v. Ascott |nv.

Corp., 759 F. Supp. 245, 254 (E.D. Pa. 1991). Although date, place,

or tinme allegations will provide precision, substantiation, and

notice, "nothing in the rule requires them" 742 F.2d at 791.
Born has satisfied the rule's requirenent that he put

Cooper on notice of the precise msconduct with which it is

char ged. In his conplaint, Born alleges fraudulent conduct by
Cooper. Born alleges that Cooper required nmandatory physiatrist
consultation to Cooper-enployee physiatrists, double billing of

residents’ salaries, and the requirenent that physicians sign the
charts of patients they had not personally treated. (Am Conpl. 11
19-21.) He also alleges that Cooper acted in collusion with the
ot her defendants, thereby adequately pleading conspiracy. (Am
Conpl . T 22). Cooper has nore than adequate notice of the all eged
fraud, and the allegations are precise enough to support a claim

for fraud. Cf. In re Mdlantic Corp. Shareholder Litig., 758




F. Supp. 226, 231 (D.N.J. 1990) ("If the pleaded facts and
supporting allegations permt the inference of a colorable claim
for fraud and afford the defendant notice as to which actions or
communi cations are alleged to have been fraudul ent, the conplaint
will wthstand a notion to dismss."). Thus, Cooper’s notion is
deni ed.

An appropriate Order follows.



IN THE UNI TED STATES DI STRI CT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DI STRI CT OF PENNSYLVAN A
CHRI STOPHER T. BORN, M D. . CGVIL ACTION
V. :
W LLI AM | ANNACONE, M D.,
ROBERT DALSEY, MD.,
LAWRENCE DEUTSCH, M D.
JOHN CATALANO, M D., and
THE COOPER HEALTH SYSTEM

d/ b/ a COOPER HOSPI TAL/ :
UNI VERSI TY MEDI CAL CENTER : NO 97-5607

ORDER

AND NOW this 2nd day of June, 1999, upon
consi deration of the Mdtion of Defendant The Cooper Health System
(“Cooper” or “Defendant”) to Dismiss Plaintiff’s Qu Tam Caim
(Docket No. 26), the Response of Plaintiff, Christoper T. Born,
MD. (“Born” or “Plaintiff”), Cooper’s letter-brief (Docket No.
39), and Plaintiff's Sur-Reply (Docket No. 40), IT IS HEREBY

ORDERED t hat the Defendant’s Mtion i s DEN ED.

BY THE COURT:

HERBERT J. HUTTON, J.



